
 

Santa Clara City Council Page 1 
December 9, 2015 

SANTA CLARA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 9, 2015 

MINUTES 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 

UTAH, met for a Regular Meeting on Wednesday, December 9, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. in the City 

Council Chambers of the Town Hall at 2603 Santa Clara Drive, Santa Clara, Utah. 

 

Notice of the time, place and agenda of the meeting was provided to the Spectrum and to each 

member of the governing body by emailing a copy of the Notice and Agenda to the Spectrum 

and also, along with any packet information, to the mayor and each council member, at least two 

days before the meeting. 

 

Present:   Mayor Rick Rosenberg 

Council Members: Herb Basso, Jerry Amundsen, Ken Sizemore, David Whitehead, Mary Jo 

(Tode) Hafen 

Deputy Recorder: Lisa Bundy 

 

Others Present: Brock Jacobsen, Assistant City Manager; Jack Taylor, Public Works Director; 

Corey Bundy, Building Official; Matt Ence, City Attorney; Brad Hays, Parks Director; Sam 

Davis; Paula Watkins; Pat Clark; Cimarron Chacon; Lee E. Hughes; Koby Taylor; Bradi Frei; 

Blaine Wilson; Jarett Waite; Dan Wood; Shannon Evertsen; Robert Gibson; Lynn Froerer; Gary 

Hall; Jared Purdy; Mike Eagar; Barbara Renouf; Jack Renouf; Victor Frei; Gwendolyn Frei; 

Charles Clayton; Don Graf; Pat Graf; Erin Mylroie; Alan Ayala; Judy Ogden; Larry Ogden; 

Brooksby Hafen; Darrylin Hafen; Cindy Frei; Shelly Frei; Jewell Frei; RJ Hughes; Marsha Lyn 

Gubler; Katie O.; Stan Demille; Mel Taylor; Jill McArthur; Joanne Wall; LuJuanna Hafen; Mark 

Beauchamp, Utility Financial 

 

1. Call to Order: Mayor Pro tem Hafen called the meeting to order at 4:04 p.m. 

 

2. Opening Ceremony: 
 

     -  Pledge of Allegiance:  Ken Sizemore 

     -  Opening Comments:  Ken Sizemore 

 

 3. Communications and Appearances: 

  

  A.  General Citizen Communications: None. 

 

4. Working Agenda:  
  

B. General Business: 

 

1. Discussion regarding the Solar Study.  Presented by Mark Beauchamp, Utility Financial. 

 

- Jack Taylor, Public Works Director said they are here to introduce the study that they 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 2 
December 9, 2015 

hired Utility Financial Services to do.  He introduced Mark Beauchamp from Utility 

Financial.  He said they are going to go through slides and then open it up for discussion. 

- Mark Beauchamp said that the challenge the electric industry faces is how to be fair to 

solar customers and existing customers who don’t have solar.  He said he will go through 

2 sections of his report.  He went over a power point presentation.  He said there were 

two studies completed: one for UAMPS and one for a Cost of Service Study.  He said 

that when it comes to determining how to avoided costs, there are 3 different methods: 

short run marginal costs (how much your costs are going to change over the next month 

or year as a result of the customer installing a solar unit), long run marginal costs (as a 

result of installing solar, how much is it going to save in the future) and current cost.  He 

said the problem with short run marginal costs is that it doesn’t properly value the 

capacity that solar provides.   Short run marginal costs are not stable.  He said they want 

to send a price signal that has some stability to it so customers can make an economic 

decision with respect to installing roof-top solar.  Long run marginal costs looks at the 

potential capacity savings that’s going to occur as a result of installing a renewable.  They 

look at the generation savings, the transmission savings and the distribution savings.  

There are a number of other components.  Current costs are used on the distribution 

system.  He said they looked at how the installation of solar will reduce the demands of 

UAMPS.  They looked out how much it would delay the installation of a natural gas fire 

combustion turbine as a combined cycle.  He said that came out to a potential savings on 

this unit in St. George of $26,504 annually.  It changes by month to some degree.  He 

said they then looked at the substations (Santa Clara specific).  The savings on the 

substation and the sub transmission and how it reduces the peaks of the system.  That 

came to $513 for that unit.  The distribution saving, the savings on the infrastructure 

close to the customer is $506.  Total savings if that unit was installed would be about 

$27, 524.  That equates to a value of 6.16 cents per kilowatt hour.  This is for residential.  

Solar customers still have the same peaks as regular customers.  Commercial is different.  

Their peak is at a different time.  It has more value than residential.  The value of 

commercial is 6.96 cents per kilowatt hour.  The main difference between the two 

numbers is because of the potential long term savings as a result of the reduction in the 

commercial demands on that infrastructure close to the customer.  The question is how do 

we go about getting that credit to the customers?  There are different ways.  One is a buy 

all sell all concept.  The solar production and the amount the customer takes is metered.  

With that information you can back into the amount of energy that the facility actually 

uses in total.  The amount that is used by the facility (home) is billed off of the normal 

rate tariffs.  The home would be billed based on the total electric consumption.  Then the 

production from the solar unit, they would then be credited on their bill on that total solar 

production at the 6.16 cents.  He said that this is fine for commercial but for residential it 

can be a little more complex because of additional metering and customers may not 

understand it.  He said they proposed a different method that would approximate this 

same methodology.  He said they looked at the average cost per kilowatt hour that is 

charged, the 8.88 cents, less the cost rate of 6.16 cents, so the lost distribution recovery is 

2.7 cents.  Then they looked at the average production in kilowatt hours.  The annual 

under recovery that would occur is $49.58.  He said they have done this work for a 

number of communities.  He said the value of solar is dependent on how much it reduces 

the demands of the system. 

- Herb Basso said that he would like to review as to how the 6.16 cents is determined. 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 3 
December 9, 2015 

- Mark Beauchamp said that in working with UAMPS they looked at the UAMPS 

systems and how solar would allow the delay of installation of unit of capacity.  How 

much is it going to reduce the demands on the UAMPS system?  He said once that was 

identified they looked at how much it would cost to install the next generating unit.  They 

then applied what the natural gas prices are projected to be in the area.  That number 

came out to 5.55 cents per kilowatt hour.  There are two factors that had to be added to 

that: one is transmission losses and also the losses within the City’s own distribution 

system.  That took it to 5.8 cents he thinks.  They then added in the distribution costs.   

- Herb Basso asked what the average home need was.  How many kilowatts?   

- Jack Taylor said it was about an average of 1,200. 

- Sam Davis said that he is a solar owner in Santa Clara.  He wanted to know how this 

will affect the peaks. 

- Mark Beauchamp said that he is an accountant and not an engineer.  He said that there 

is enormous value to them.  The homes consumption could be leveled out and it could 

lower the impacts on the infrastructure close to the utility.   

- Sam Davis asked for a rough estimate on what it would add to 6.16 cents. 

- Mark Beauchamp said that he couldn’t answer that except that will this increase the 

value of solar, it most definitely would. 

- Sam Davis said that he realizes that this is a very narrow study.  He wanted to know if 

there was any consideration given at all when they do these type of studies, what 

methodology used for the total evaluation of solar. 

- Mark Beauchamp said that he believes what he is referring to is the environmental 

benefits.  The EPA said that the value of societal impact of producing a kilowatt hour of 

electricity is about 1 ½ cents per kilowatt hour.  He will see the value of solar rising. 

- Sam Davis wanted to know how much Santa Clara pays for other renewables. 

- Jack Taylor said it is hard to come up with an average.  He could show a graph.  There 

is not a constant.   

- Sam Davis said that he noticed around the country that utility companies and solar are at 

odds.  He asked what structure utility companies prefer. 

- Mark Beauchamp said that the push was for net metering.  They are now trying to use a 

method that does properly put a value on the solar.  He said that he looks at cost.  He said 

that Santa Clara prefers the feed-in rate tariff.  He said that would be ideal. 

- Lee Hughes, 1828 Red Mountain Drive, said that he thinks they should go as they are 

right now for two years and then gather all the data of use, cost of utilities, etc. and with 

actual numbers of use and actual numbers of costs and then come forward with how 

much it is actually costing the City to maintain the grid with these solar units.  He said 

that he wants to know what the actual cost per household is to maintain the grid. 

- Jack Taylor said that the City has a year of actual data. 

- Mark Beauchamp said that a customer doesn’t want a short term cost of service study 

but they what they really want is a long run marginal cost evaluation. 

- Jack Taylor said the nice thing about public power is if they need to make a change, 

then they will make the change.  He said that if there is a benefit that should be going to 

solar customers then he feels like the change should be made.  Solar helps the City and is 

a benefit to the City. 

- Jarett Waite, 2096 Rachel Drive, asked if Mark recommends the 6.16 cents be a 

permanent thing.  He wondered if this should be reevaluated at some sort of interval.   

- Mark Beauchamp said the he envisions that the way this would work would be 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 4 
December 9, 2015 

periodically the work needs to be reviewed.  This can’t be put into a formula.   

- Jack Taylor asked if that means every 3 years Santa Clara would have to do another rate 

study. 

- Mark Beauchamp said that it is something that utilities should do every 3 to 5 years.  He 

said periodically UAMPS may want to update their portion of the study. 

- Matt Ence, City Attorney, said that even under the current policy the City Council could 

revise the rate as often as every year.  They have built in that ability even though it is a 

20-year term recognizing that circumstances could change. 

- Jarett Waite said that he likes that but the concern is that it is based off of nothing unless 

they do another study.  The Council needs to decide if they are going to do a study again.  

Can they justify the cost for only a few customers? 

- Jack Taylor said that the cost was about $2,000 for Santa Clara City. 

- Sam Davis said that all he wants to do is reduce his costs.  He said there is no defined 

standard for determining the value of solar.  He said the states will have to define a 

common standard.  What is best for Santa Clara?  Solar is coming at everybody.   He said 

that he’s not sure that cities and states are prepared to meet the challenges of solar. 

- Pat Clark, 2494 Parkway Circle, said she got solar to help with the cost of her living 

expenses.  She said she is very confused.  She is not sure which way would help her.  

How will the changes affect her?  She would like to know and understand. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that Jack Taylor could take her usage and show her what her 

savings could be. 

- Blaine Wilson, 2101 Arrowhead Trail, said that he started studying solar.  He made a 

decision to do something to help maintain his lifestyle.  He and his wife are raising their 

grandchildren and had to figure ways to the best they can for the long haul.  And he 

looked at solar.  He said that based on the data that he felt that metering would work so 

they made a heavy investment in a solar system.  He said that now the rules are being 

changed and he would never have made the decision for solar if they had the new data.  

He said he is not a happy camper.  He recommends that the City grandfather in those 

customers that were customers before the rules were changed. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said they are just taking comments on the issue.  He said there won’t 

be a decision made tonight.  It will come back at a future City Council meeting and the 

solar customers will be notified of that date.  He said they appreciate the input. 

- Herb Basso asked if they know the cost of the infrastructure per person.  He asked if 

Jack Taylor and staff could make sure that is very accurate by the next meeting. 

  

A. Public Hearing(s):  

 

1. Public Hearing to receive public input on the True Grit Single Event Alcohol Beverage 

Permit. 

 

- Brad Hays said that GRO Promotions has asked for an application for Santa Clara 

Special Single Event Beer Permit for the Tru Grit Epic Mountain Bike Race.  The race 

itself has been to the Technical Review Committee and approved but tonight they are 

asking for the single event permit.  The event will start at 7 a.m. and go until 7 p.m.  They 

will have food vendor and on private property across from Heights Drive, like last year, 

they would like to have a beer tent to serve a single beer.  (See attached application.)  

This is the same permit as last year.  There is a difference: there is one per participant last 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 5 
December 9, 2015 

year and this year it’s one per guest.  There is one other thing, the proximity issue.  It is 

within the 400 feet of a park. 

- Matt Ence said that the City did change the proximity to match the State’s requirements.  

He said that in this case there is no question that it’s well within those. 

- Bray Hays read from the ordinance.  (See attached.)  He said that this issue was in the 

ordinance last year and the Council approved the hardship.  Racers come from all over.  

The racers feel they are not respected when they can’t celebrate their accomplishments in 

a way they believe that is done in other communities.  

- Herb Basso asked if the Council was going to discuss the waivers as well. 

- Cimarron Chacon said that the beer garden went well last year.  It was very quiet.  It 

made a big impact to the participants.  She said they have received favorable response.  

This year registrations are up.  There are over 100 already.  The participants are from the 

east coast and a large group coming from Costa Rica.  There is an international audience.  

They are staying in Santa Clara.  She said they will keep things as conservative as 

possible.  She said they will double the size of the serving tent.  This will be March 12. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that the public safety wasn’t at the meeting but they didn’t report 

any problems from last year’s event. 

 

 5:19 p.m. Public Hearing Opened. 

 

- Larry Ogden, 1297 Summerwood, said that he has been a proud member of the 

community since 2013.  He wanted to thank Ken Sizemore for talking with him recently.  

He said he was very professional and polite.  He said one of the reasons they moved to 

Santa Clara was because it is a very beautiful, safe and quaint community.  He said a lot 

of that quaintness has to do with the pioneer forefathers.  He said there appears to be a 

need for a community dialog on this issue so that it doesn’t take so much of the Council’s 

time for every event.  He doesn’t know what the mechanics are to facilitate that.  He feels 

that the Council would like the constituents input. He said that the City Attorney has done 

a great deal of work at the Council’s request to rewrite the liquor laws.  He said that it 

would be convenient to have them more in conformity with the State.  He wondered if the 

community and the constituents’ desires have truly been heard.  He asked if the neighbors 

were notified about the license being given.  He said that it would be worthwhile to have 

that community dialog.  He said he would be happy to help. 

- Barbara Renouf, 1290 Summerwood Circle, said that she has resided here 8 years.  She 

said that her interest in coming to the meeting began with an article from the Spectrum 

about the liquor license being granted in the community to a place that is close to her 

home.  She said she spoke to a person at the State Beverage Control a couple of times and 

to Matt Ence and several others.  She said that she feels strongly, as a resident, about the 

history of Santa Clara.  It was founded on very conservative values.  She feels like they 

are moving away from some of those things and she hates to see that.  She said that there 

is something very unique in Santa Clara and she thinks that is what brings these bicyclers 

here also.  She thinks they would still ride their bikes here and enjoy the beautiful scenery 

and not have to be rewarded with a beverage that doesn’t really fit with what people do 

here in Santa Clara.  She said that we have a responsibility to maintain the quality of life 

in Santa Clara.   

- Erin Mylroie, 1343 Summerwood, said that she is a new resident of Santa Clara.  She 

said she was drawn to Santa Clara because of the small town feel of the community and 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 6 
December 9, 2015 

the family values and the quaint nature.  She said she has some serious doubts about the 

citizens of Santa Clara approving of having alcohol served in residential communities in 

Santa Clara.  She said that that dialog needs to be opened and regular citizens that live 

here need the opportunity to voice their opinions about that issue.  She said that the St. 

George marathon that draws thousands of people to St. George area every year and not a 

drop of alcohol is served.  She said that people come from all over the world to the 

marathon.  She said she objects to the idea that there is quantifiable evidence to suggest 

that people will not come here if alcohol is not served.  There are establishments that 

serve liquor.  There are opportunities for liquor for the athletes who want to celebrate in 

that way.  It doesn’t need to happen in a residential area.  She said that they have a 

chance to distinguish themselves as a community to say that this is something that we as 

a community do not want in residential areas.  This is a conflict with community values 

that should be respected. 

- Jared Purdy, 2307 Vineyard Drive, said that he is a long term resident in Santa Clara.  

He also participates in Tru Grit.  He agrees that it is not necessary to have alcohol at the 

event.  He doesn’t partake of that but at the same time he doesn’t think there is anything 

necessarily wrong with it.  He said that the way the GRO Productions has structured this 

is making it semiprivate.  It keeps people from the community from noticing what is 

going on.  He said that he knows that the neighbors that are around this have been 

approached on this subject.  He said it was a heated conversation last year and he doesn’t 

see any of those neighbors here today.  Last year’s event went really well.  He said that 

he loves Santa Clara and he loves the values we hold.  He said that he thinks they have to 

be fair to people who don’t practice the same lifestyle that we do.  He said he struggles to 

see how this event puts a black eye on the City.   

- Jack Renouf, 1290 Summerwood, said that he has been a resident for 8 or 9 years.  He 

has a family history here.  He said he would agree that there isn’t anything terribly wrong 

or bad or give the community a black eye for having this event but he does think it 

defines who we are.  He doesn’t think there could be a better main road to drive down on 

a bicycle than Santa Clara.  He doesn’t think they need one beer for a small group.  He 

doesn’t think we need to compromise what he considers to be core values here.  He 

compliments the people who put this race together.  He also thanked the City Council for 

the hard work they do.    

- Victor Frei, 1496 Victor Street, said he is one of the old-timers.  He said that he loves 

this community.  There is a traffic problem on Santa Clara Drive.  It’s not unusual to wait 

10 minutes to get out on the street.  He said they don’t need more traffic coming down 

Santa Clara Drive.  He hopes the Council will look at that.  There is a Chapel in the 

middle of Santa Clara Drive.  That Chapel tells us what this community is built on.  Why 

people and the hard work they put in.  He said he doesn’t get too jubilant about alcoholic 

drinks not even a block away from that chapel.  He said it ruffles his feathers.  He said it 

isn’t the right place for this event.  He hopes the Council will consider the environment 

and the area.   

- Melvin Taylor, 1401 Victor’s Street, said that he has lived here since 1972.  He said that 

he always sees an ordinance, regulation or rule being thrown out to the City Council to 

change, or to accept continually.  Somebody’s going to get killed crossing that road to get 

a drink or leaving that facility after having a drink with so much traffic and no crosswalk.  

Who’s going to be responsible for that if they have two drinks and get hit?  He said he 

hopes it’s not the citizens but it will be the Councilmen.  He said he hopes the Council 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 7 
December 9, 2015 

will weigh what has been brought to them. 

- Mayor Rosenberg reminded the audience that this public hearing is for the Tru Grit 

single event alcohol permit and the event will take place close to City Hall and not by the 

chapel.   

- Alan Ayala, 2898 Santa Clara Drive, said that he rents a home there.  He said he was 

here last year for the same event and gave his opinion last year as well.  He appreciates 

what the Council does.  He echoes what was said about heritage and he loves Santa Clara 

for what it is.  He mentioned what was said about it being a hardship because it is done in 

other communities, to serve alcohol after these events have occurred.  He said that the 

group from Costa Rica that it would probably be their first time visiting Santa Clara.  He 

said it is not common in our community to serve alcohol and now we have a great 

opportunity to present this type of heritage to people from Costa Rica.  They will get to 

come here and experience some of the heritage and special feel that other people 

experience when they come here but if we make this place common, like other 

communities, than we won’t stand apart.  What makes this place very special is that we 

are not a common community.  We are a special community.  He said that if they grant 

their request, he asks that the Council at least hold to last year’s standard and only allow 

the bike racers to be served one alcoholic beverage and not anyone else.   

- Tode Hafen had to leave. 

- Marsha Gubler, 2786 Santa Clara Drive, said that she has lived here almost 40 years.  

She said that she came here because this was a place where they could raise their children 

in the way that they wanted to raise them.  She said a year ago this was a one-time thing.  

She said now a year later, they are back to the same thing.  She said she appreciates what 

the City Council does.  She appreciates if they would listen to what people are saying 

about this is our community and they don’t want to have it change.  She said they want to 

be the one that stands out as the bright star.   

- Cimarron Chacon said that she has a couple of comments of clarification for the people 

in the audience.  She said often times at these events the city staff is collecting beer 

bottles out of the trash because participants, even if they are told not to, are going bring 

their own.  They are often bringing more than one.  Part of this is a way to celebrate but 

it’s also a public safety issue and a way to control participants and let them know that 

there is a place that they are allowed to have one beer and only one beer as they partake 

in the after event celebration which includes water and food and kid activities.  The beer 

serving location is just across the street and that street is closed off during the event.  She 

said that if they allow for the participants guest to be able to drink there will be no beer 

sales on the premises during the event as they did last year.  It would be prepaid during 

the registration process and they would be ID’d and given a wristband at the packet 

pickup which is done off site as they did last year.  We don’t want to see people with beer 

bottles walking around the town hall grounds.  That is one of the strong reasons they 

want to have this beer garden approved. 

- Herb Basso asked how many beers were served last year. 

- Cimarron Chacon said that there were 420 participants and about 100 beers were 

served.  She said they anticipate between 400 to 600 participants this year.  She said they 

were never gathered at the same time. 

- Ken Sizemore said that last year she told the neighbors around and they sent some 

letters.  He wanted to know if that happened again this year. 

- Cimarron Chacon said that it did and all but one neighbor answered the door.  She 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 8 
December 9, 2015 

presented a list to the City Council of the 10 neighbors who were selected by the City 

Manager and staff at the technical committee meeting.  The three neighbors whose 

backyard or side yard immediately butt the property have expressed support and said they 

had no problems about the beer garden being there.  She said they also submitted 5 letters 

of character reference.  She said she has been a community member for 16 years.  She 

said she appreciates the heritage as well.  She also likes to see the community grow.  She 

likes to see economic development.  The YouTube went viral.   

- Ken Sizemore asked her how many events she has organized since last year’s Tru Grit.   

- Cimarron Chacon said that she’s been an event organizer for 8 years she has put on 7 

events a year.   

- Ken Sizemore asked out of all of the events she has organized, how many serve alcohol. 

- Cimarron Chacon said some do not.  Some are done on public land and there is beer 

drinking that happens. 

 

5:58 p.m. Public Hearing Closed. 

 

B. General Business: 

 

     3. Request Approval for the True Grit Single Event Alcohol Beverage Permit and possible 

waiver of Parks Rental Fees.  Presented by Brad Hays, Parks Director. 

 

- Mayor Rosenberg asked for the amount of the request for the waiver. 

- Brad Hayes said there are two things they want to use: the town hall grounds, that’s 

$200 and then they want to use the little league park which is $65 and that is for people to 

stay overnight to give them a place to park.  It was done last year. 

- Herb Basso asked how many people took advantage of the overnight park last year. 

- Brad Hayes said that it was 40 or 50.  There were no issues at all.  He said he wanted to 

read some comments from last year.  He said that concerning other events around the area 

there is no alcohol allowed in any city park, but there’s always alcohol there.  He said he 

brought this up last year.  He wanted Captain Rogers comments from last year on the 

record.  His comment was “personally we would not like to see any alcohol…having a 

beer garden would provide a more controlled environment.” 

- Herb Basso said his feelings haven’t changed since last year.  He thinks this is an 

excellent event but does not feel that having a beer garden enhances the event.  He 

doesn’t think the garden would be an advantage.  He thinks they should do all they can to 

support and enhance the growth of this event, but he disapproves of having the beer 

garden as part of the event. 

- Matt Ence wanted to interject a couple of legally related things.  When Brad cited the 

ordinance earlier in the meeting, this applicant came in under the old ordinance, which is 

why they had to have the 5 references.  Nothing has changed as far as the standard of last 

year.  However, none of the changes that have been made with the new ordinance would 

affect how the Council considers this.  This would still be under the distance 

requirements.  These applications are being considered under an ordinance that has been 

on the City’s books for at least 19 years.  This Council didn’t adopt this ordinance.  He 

said they are not considering this application under any new law. 

- Herb Basso asked if the zone is still R 1-10. 

- Matt Ence said that nothing has changed. 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 9 
December 9, 2015 

- David Whitehead said that he agrees with Herb on this.  As he recalls in talking with 

public safety last year some of the issues were with public safety.  He remembers that 

they felt this was a good way in controlling things and they felt it worked quite well.  

There weren’t any issues.  Is the beer garden necessary?  Probably not.  He shares the 

same values concerning alcohol.  He abstains from alcohol but he said he does know that 

going back in history there has been histories of alcohol and wineries.  The values we 

have are very important to us and he appreciates that.  His concern is if there is alcohol 

being consumed it would be in an area that is safe and enclosed and not in parks or 

neighborhoods or on the street or trails.  He wants to make sure it is properly consumed 

and contained.   

- Herb Basso said that he took a hard stance against it last year so he kept close to it.  He 

served food at the event and so he was able to watch it last year.  He said the officers that 

were there didn’t seem to have any problems with it. 

- Jerry Amundsen said there was the same concern last.  He said they share the same 

values.  He agrees it doesn’t enhance but it might take away from the event participants.  

He said that having a controlled situation in a controlled area with a controlled number of 

consumers is a lot safer.   

- Ken Sizemore said that this is not the first time they have discussed these issues and 

concerns and that he agrees about having the control it gives us and helps public safety.  

He said he was at the event last year and watched it very closely because of the 

controversy and concerns.  He said they didn’t see any public safety concerns or law 

enforcement concerns.  He said the Council has set a precedent for approving this kind of 

an event on special occasions.  This isn’t like a continual event that is going to be 

happening day after day.  If conditions change they can address that.   

- Matt Ence said that the motion should include the justification for the exception to the 

distance requirement. 

- Ken Sizemore said they do need to consider the one change that was made noted from 

this application and that is serving a guest as well as the participant.  Whether or not that 

is an issue that should be reviewed at this point. 

- Herb Basso said that is important.  He said that the Council let it in and now let it in to 

the participant’s friend.  He said that it controls what they have at the main site.   

- David Whitehead asked whether any guests were served last year. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that last year was participants only.  The participant was issued a 

band and they had to have a band to be in the area. 

- Cimarron Chacon said it would be the same procedure so the guest could not be just 

walking through and just showing up and they have to be pre-purchased by the 

participant and they would be on the list.  Nobody could come and walk through and 

there would be no alcohol sales on the premises.  About 50% would probably bring a 

guest.  The size of the tent would be doubled.  It will have sidewalls so that will decrease 

visibility and provide more shade. 

 

Motion to Deny the Tru Grit Single Event Alcohol Beverage Permit and possible waiver of Parks 

Rental Fees. 

Motion by Herb Basso. 

Motion dies. 

 

 - David Whitehead asked Matt Ence about the requirements for the waiver.  He said that 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 10 
December 9, 2015 

it has to be a hardship or what else?  

 - Matt Ence read to the Council that it says “unless the City Council finds that after full 

investigation that compliance with the distance requirement would result in peculiar and 

exceptional practical difficulties or exceptional or undue hardships, either which events 

the City Council may after giving full consideration to the attending circumstances 

following a public hearing in the City authorize a variance from the distance 

requirements so as to relieve the difficulties or hardships providing the variance may be 

granted without substantial detriment to the public good and without substantially 

impairing the intent and purpose of this section.”  He said there is a positive and negative 

review that the Council is doing.    

 

Motion to Approve the Tru Grit Single Event Alcohol Beverage Permit and the variance of the 

distance and approve the waiver of Parks Rental Fees. 

Motion by Jerry Amundsen, seconded by David Whitehead.  

Voting Aye: David Whitehead, Jerry Amundsen and Ken Sizemore. 

Voting Nay: Herb Basso. 

Motion Carried.  
 

2. Cancel the December 23, 2015 City Council Meeting.  Presented by Chris Shelley, City 

Recorder. 

 

Motion to Cancel the December 23, 2015 City Council Meeting.  

Motion by David Whitehead, seconded by Ken Sizemore. 

Voting Aye: David Whitehead, Jerry Amundsen, Ken Sizemore and Herb Basso. 

Voting nay: None 

Motion Carried.   
 

4. Action to ratify prior approval of boundary adjustment to transfer six acres from St. 

George City to City of Santa Clara and Approve Ordinance 2015-21.  Presented by Matt 

Ence, City Attorney.  

 

 - Matt Ence said that this is to ratify a prior action by the City Council.  The City Council 

adopted a resolution originally to consider the boundary adjustment.  There was a 

required 60-day waiting period while some publication took place.  Then a public hearing 

was held and then the City Council voted to approve that boundary adjustment.  The 

original vote to approve the boundary adjustment didn’t adopt it as an ordinance.  That is 

required to get it recorded and finalized.  He said they are just asking the Council to ratify 

its prior action.  Nothing has changed since then. 

 - Ken Sizemore asked if the City is on legal thin ice because it’s already started without 

this ordinance being approved. 

 - Matt Ence said not that he knows of.  He said that the other parties involved including 

St. George City and the Lieutenant Governor’s office have done their own review and 

that process is done.  He said they’re at the point of recording it.  He said their attention 

was called to the fact that this hadn’t been done in the formal way that it should have 

been done.  The action was proper it just wasn’t associated with an ordinance number in 

such a way that they could provide to the recorder’s office for recording. 

 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 11 
December 9, 2015 

Motion to Approve the Action to Ratify prior approval of boundary adjustment to transfer six 

acres from St. George to City of Santa Clara and Approve Ordinance 2015-21. 

Motion by Ken Sizemore, seconded by Jerry Amundsen. 

Voting Aye: Ken Sizemore, Jerry Amundsen, Herb Basso and David Whitehead. 

Voting Nay: None. 

Motion Carried. 
 

5.  Reports: 

    

A. Mayor / Council Reports 

 

Jerry Amundsen: 

Regional Flood Control Authority: there is not a lot that involves Santa Clara except 

there is concern over debris in the flood channels of the Santa Clara River and the 

other channels around the County.  Taking into account the potential of the high 

flows during and El Nino weather event this year.  A permit is being sought and work 

will be complete to clean out or at least get the work approval to clean out.  We are 

trying to be proactive.  

 - Mayor Rosenberg said the Executive Committee approved the expenditure of 

$150,000 from the reserved funds to go into that debris removal.  They are getting 

some inspections done on the Virgin River and they have less concern there so they 

are going to spend more of that money on the Santa Clara River.  They are having the 

firefighters go in and do that work.  He said they need easements from property 

owners.   

The Blue Can and the processing of the consumables that would be generated through 

there.  At the current rates, the district is paying a company to take the recyclables.  It 

is not receiving any money back any longer.  We are paying them to take it at a 

cheaper rate than it is to bury it at the landfill.  The process is moving forward and it’s 

hopeful that will reverse.  It’s a cyclible event.  There is no money coming.  It’s a 

green thing to do.  It does still help to keep that material out of the landfill. 

- Ken Sizemore said that a couple of weeks ago he sent his son down to take his 

recyclables to the binnies and he said that the binnies had been barricaded so the 

newspaper couldn’t be deposited.   

- Jerry Amundsen wondered if it was because it was so full.  He said that some of the 

binnies will be left after Blue Can begins. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that the binnies on Lava Flow has turned into a trash pile.  

He said he would like to get rid of the binnies there.  He said they will put it in 

motion to move them. 

Planning Commission meeting was last night.  Paradise Village at Zion was approved 

to continue.  There was some public outcry about rental property.  He said that will 

come up at future meetings.  He said that the Council looked at the option to change 

the General Plan around the old Burger Bar location.  He said there was a lot of 

public clamor about that.  The residents in the area do not like the idea of an 

apartment complex.  It’s commercial property but there is no movement.  He doesn’t 

know if the applicant will come to Council to see if Council will approve the General 

Plan.  The Planning Commission declined to recommend to City Council to change 

the General Plan.  The applicant was applying to change to a medium density 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 12 
December 9, 2015 

residential.  Three residents gave comment at the meeting. 

 

David Whitehead: 

Nothing with Mosquito Abatement. 

He has had some comments of concern on the road between Harmons and the middle 

school on Rachel Drive.  They are putting in the lane in front of Harmons.  The 

concern is when cars park on the side of the road across the street from the school and 

if they open the door you have to swerve because that lane is so narrow.  A lot of 

people have commented that there is going to be an increase of traffic because of 

Harmons.  Is that going to be an issue?  He wants the Council to drive through and 

take a look. 

- Jerry Amundsen said they have the curb stakes up now and that lane is going to 

almost double in width. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said they may want to consider taking out the bump outs and 

making it a continuous street section down through there. 

- Ken Sizemore said there needs to be a crossing.  It needs to move up the priority list.  

As soon as Harmons opens its door and kids start crossing the street to buy stuff it’s 

going to be a real conflict.   

 

Herb Basso: 

The EDC has a new chair, Rex Oliver.  The Swiss Days gals came and received some 

input.  They are meeting next month to talk about a strategic plan.  Grant information 

was sent to him by Ed Dickie, City Manager which is great timing.  They are moving 

forward.  They are looking for two more people.  He is working on the ordinance for 

February concerning the bees. 

 

Ken Sizemore: 

Congress passed a 5-year FAST transportation bill.  It will provide a lot more 

consistency and ability to plan ahead for transportation systems. 

The D-tech meeting for today was cancelled.  There won’t be a meeting this month.  

There won’t be another meeting until February. 

He mentioned the letter he sent out today. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said they should talk logistics. 

- Brock Jacobsen said there will be a special meeting at 4:00 to swear in the new 

Council member and then they will move to the Fire Station on Rachel Drive.  The 

Chief wants to know how much to accommodate for and how many chairs and tables.  

There is seating for 30 or 40. There is a projector with a screen.  The engines will be 

pulled out and the bays will be used. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that there doesn’t need to be a lot of chairs.  People can come 

and keep on their feet and ask questions like the transportation expo.   

- Brock Jacobsen asked about the concern of how to do the minutes. 

- Mayor Rosenberg said that this is an open house and not a work meeting.  The 

meeting part is the swearing in.  Brad will need information on parks, the plans and 

renderings.  Corey will need the plans on Harmons.  And will Frank be there?  There 

will be Hwy 91 plans.  Someone needs to be there to represent Harmons.  There needs 

to be plans of the master plan up there, the roads, trails, the General Plan. 

- Ken Sizemore said they should solicit comments. Have a place where they can write 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 13 
December 9, 2015 

them. 

- Brad Hays said he invited the Water Conservation District to be there too. 

Another issue he has had is people are telling him that the City Council is not 

listening and that they are making decisions before they are listening to the 

community.  He said there has to be a way to change that.  He told the citizens that he 

talked to that they can go to the website.  They told him that’s not enough.  They told 

him that they should be able to send an email to everyone in a neighborhood that is 

going to be impacted by an issue and solicit their comments. 

  - Brock Jacobsen said they are collecting emails but they are only on new hook ups 

that they are getting emails.  He said they have put out information on the newsletter 

and have asked people for their emails.  He said they probably got 50 emails back. 

  - Mayor Rosenberg asked about having a Facebook page. 

  - Brock Jacobsen said the City now has someone that works for them that is very 

good at setting those things up.  They could give her that information with direction 

and she would do a fantastic job of maintaining and updating that.  The problem with 

that is anyone who wants to see it has to have a Facebook account. 

  - Matt Ence suggested putting a place on the webpage where someone can put their 

email address, hit subscribe and then get a copy of the agenda sent to their email 

when it’s posted.  It wouldn’t be hard to do and it would alleviate the staff having to 

collect emails, someone having to maintain a Facebook page and other issues. 

  - Herb Basso mentioned using the parlant system. 

  - Matt Ence warned that by using that often it will have less value and it is more of an 

emergency system. 

  - Jerry Amundsen agreed and said that it needs to be reserved for emergency and we 

don’t want people to ignore this. 

  - Matt Ence said there is an ordinance that require a notice to residents.  When you 

start saying you are going to do that for this and this, then the standards start slipping.  

How are you going to decide when you’re going to use parlant and when you’re not? 

  - Mayor Rosenberg liked the idea of subscribing on the website. 

  - Ken Sizemore said that he thinks the City does need to do a Facebook page.  He said 

most communities have it.   

  - Herb Basso said it can create a lot of positive vibes in a community. 

 

Mayor Rosenberg: 

He stated that he loves the stop signs.  He said it is much, much safer.  Tree trimming 

has helped out a lot also.   

He did get back to the Days of 47 Committee and told them the maximum 

contribution that Santa Clara City would even consider would be $3,500.  They are 

taking that back to the organizing committee. 

 

7. Approval of Claims and Minutes:   

 

- David Whitehead had a question about what the Dixie State University CECA 

 Membership was. 

-  Mayor Rosenberg said that it is the community education channel that is funded by all the 

 cities.   

- Oct. 28, 2015 City Council Minutes 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 14 
December 9, 2015 

- Oct. 28, 2015 City Council Executive Session Minutes 

- Nov. 4, 2015 City Council Work Meeting Minutes 

- Nov. 18, 2015 City Council Special Meeting Minutes 

- Dec. 2, 2015 City Council Work Meeting Minutes 

- Claims through Dec. 9, 2015 

- Ken Sizemore asked about the $5,900 to the County Treasurer for a parcel of land.  Was 

it a property tax bill? 

- Brock Jacobsen said it was probably on the old City Hall.  

- Ken Sizemore asked about the money paid to Doug Terry for legal services.  He also 

asked about the money for a property appraisal.  He also asked about paying for a school 

resource officer. 

- Brock Jacobsen said that is for Snow Canyon High School.  Santa Clara pays St. George 

City.  It is based on their cost for that officer and on the school population of high school 

students from Santa Clara. 

- Ken Sizemore was wondering when the staff is going to start breaking out details on the 

credit card charges so the Council can see what it is.  He would like to know the details. 

- Brock Jacobsen said he will try to get something to see who is charging what. 

 

Motion to Approve City Council Minutes from Oct. 28, 2015, City Council Executive Session 

Minutes from Oct. 28, 2015, City Council Work Meeting Minutes from Nov. 4, 2015 and Dec. 2, 

2015, City Council Special Meeting Minutes from Nov. 18, 2015 and claims through Dec. 9, 2015. 

Motion by Ken Sizemore, seconded by Herb Basso. 

Voting Aye: Herb Basso, Ken Sizemore, Jerry Amundsen and David Whitehead. 

Voting nay: None 

Motion Carried.   
 

  - Brad Hayes said he wanted to ask one thing of the Council.  He said that he and Ed  

  Dickie met with Five Counties yesterday to talk about the Community Development  

  Block  Grant.  He said that if the City wants to apply for a grant they need to have a  

  hearing at the next regularly scheduled Council Meeting.  He would like to put that  

  hearing on the  next agenda.  The hearing is for a community development block grant to  

  consider projects for potential funding.  The hearing will be on January 13.   

 

8. Calendar of Events 
 

- Dec. 23, City Council Meeting Cancelled 

- Dec. 25 & 28 City Offices Closed 

 

Motion to go into Executive Session to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property 

and to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation. 

Motion by Jerry Amundsen, seconded by Herb Basso. 

Voting Aye: All. 

Voting Nay: None. 

  

6. Executive Session:  

 

- Entered Executive Session at 7:18 p.m. 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 15 
December 9, 2015 

- Reconvened at 7:59 p.m. 

 

9. Adjournment: 

 

Motion to adjourn by Jerry Amundsen. 

Seconded by Herb Basso with all members present voting aye. 

Meeting Adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 

 

 

 

    __________________________    Date Approved: 1-13-16 

Chris Shelley – City Recorder 

 


